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Federal Interagency Forum on Child and Family Statistics

The Federal Interagency Forum on Child and Family Statistics was founded in 1994. Executive Order No. 13045 formally
established the Forum in April 1997 to foster coordination and collaboration in the collection and reporting of Federal data
on children and families. Agencies that are members of the Forum as of summer 2020 are as follows:

Consumer Product Safety Commission
heeps://www.cpsc.gov

Department of Agriculture
Economic Research Service

heeps://www.ers.usda.gov

Department of Commerce
U.S. Census Bureau
https://www.census.gov

Department of Defense

Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for
Military Community and Family Policy
https://prhome.defense.gov/M-RA/Inside-M-RA/MCEP/

Department of Education
National Center for Education Statistics
https://nces.ed.gov

Department of Health and Human Services
Administration for Children and Families
https://www.acf.hhs.gov

Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality
https://www.ahrqg.gov

Eunice Kennedy Shriver National Institute of Child Health and
Human Development

heeps://www.nichd.nih.gov/

Maternal and Child Health Bureau
heeps://www.mchb.hrsa.gov

National Center for Health Statistics
https://www.cdc.gov/nchs

National Institute of Mental Health
https://www.nimh.nih.gov/index.shtml

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning
and Evaluation

hteps://aspe.hhs.gov

Oflice of Population Affairs

heeps://www.hhs.gov/opa/

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
heeps://www.samhsa.gov

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Oflice of Policy Development and Research

heeps://www.huduser.gov/portal/home.heml

Department of Justice
Bureau of Justice Statistics
https://www.bjs.gov

National Institute of Justice
hteps://nij.ojp.gov/

Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
https://ojjdp.ojp.gov/

Department of Labor
Bureau of Labor Statistics
https://www.bls.gov

Women’s Bureau
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/wb

Department of Transportation
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
https://www.nhtsa.gov/

Environmental Protection Agency
Office of Children’s Health Protection
https://www.epa.gov/children

Office of Management and Budget

Statistical and Science Policy Office
heeps://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/

Recommended citation: Federal Interagency Forum on Child and Family Statistics. (2020). America’s children in brief: Key
national indicators of well-being, 2020. Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office.
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September 2020.
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This year’s America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being continues two decades of
collaboration by agencies across the Federal Government to advance our understanding of our Nation’s children
and what may be needed ro bring them a better tomorrow. Data used in this report were collected before the
COVID-19 pandemic. While many of the data surveys reflected in this report have adapted to address data needs
related to the pandemic, these data were not available for inclusion at the time of publication.

Office of the Chief Statistician, U.S. Office of Management and Budget

Introduction

The Federal Interagency Forum on Child and Family Statistics (Forum) was chartered in 1997 by Executive
Order No. 13045. The Forum fosters collaboration among 23 Federal agencies that produce and use statistics on
children and families and seeks to improve these Federal data. Each year, the Forum publishes a report compiling
measures of well-being drawn from the most reliable Federal statistics.

Conceptual Framework for Key National Indicators

The Forum has identified 41 indicators that describe the well-being of children. These indicators span seven
domains: Family and Social Environment, Economic Circumstances, Health Care, Physical Environment and

Safety, Behavior, Education, and Health. The indicators also must meet the following criteria:
B FEasy to understand by broad audiences

B Objectively based on reliable data

B Balanced, so that no single area dominates the report

B Measured regularly so that they can be updated and show trends
|

Representative of large segments of the population

Pending data availability, the Forum updates all 41 indicators annually on its website (https://www.childstats.
gov/) and alternates publishing a detailed report, Americas Children: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, with
a summary version, America’s Children in Brief, which highlights selected indicators.

America’s Children in Brief, 2020

This year’s America’s Children in Brief highlights selected indicators by metropolitan status to give the reader

a closer look at how well-being is influenced by the type of community in which children and their families
live. The Brief also provides a snapshot of the overall well-being of America’s children through the At-a-Glance
summary table displaying the most recent data for all 41 indicators.

The focus on metropolitan status is motivated by the long-standing recognition that there are substantial
differences across communities and such differences may influence child well-being in diverse ways. Underlying
characteristics of communities that affect child well-being reported in this Briefinclude the following types of

factors:"1°

B Demographic characteristics of the population. The age, race, and ethnic composition of communities
differ by metropolitan status.

B Physical characteristics of natural and built environments. Living environments influence the health
and well-being of children and families in many ways, and living environments vary substantially by
metropolitan status. Differences in housing types, conditions, and costs in different communities affect
the prevalence of housing problems among the children and families who live there.

America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, 2020
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B Economic activity and conditions. The level of economic vitality in a community affects the employment
opportunities of parents. The concentration of firms, labor markets, and consumer markets varies by
metropolitan status, providing different levels and types of advantages to the children and families who
dwell in them.

B Social and cultural factors. Social and cultural factors that influence support networks, behavior, and
perceived choices vary by geography. For instance, behavioral risk factors such as smoking prevalence or
substance use often differ significantly by metropolitan status.

B Community institutions, resources, and services. Community institutions that can directly influence
child well-being include the proximity of hospitals and clinics, the availability of good schools and public
parks, and the presence of cultural and religious institutions that enrich children’s lives and development.
These community resources vary across the spectrum of metropolitan status.

B Health and wellness. Community conditions can influence a child’s health, and health in childhood can
affect other outcomes. For example, asthma is more prevalent in older and denser housing and areas with
worse air quality, which vary by metropolitan status. Chronic conditions such as childhood asthma can
impact school attendance, which can impact educational achievement.

Discussions of the geographic classifications, race and ethnicity measures, and statistical significance analyses
used in this report follow.

Geographic Classifications

Classifying counties into “standard metropolitan areas” was introduced around 1950. The U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) develops definitions for these areas to provide a nationally consistent set of
delineations for collecting, tabulating, and publishing Federal statistics for geographic areas. Although some
of the definitions and terminology have changed since they were first introduced, the OMB’s Standards for
Delineating Metropolitan and Micropolitan Statistical Areas have the same goals today as in the past.'' The
general concept of a metropolitan statistical area is an area containing a large population nucleus and adjacent
communities that have a high degree of integration with that nucleus. The concept of a micropolitan statistical
area closely parallels that of the metropolitan statistical area but contains a smaller nucleus.

B Metropolitan statistical areas contain a large (at least 50,000 residents) urbanized area and adjacent counties
with a high degree of economic integration (as measured by commuting to work) with that core.

B Nonmetropolitan counties are those not classified as within a metropolitan statistical area. Nonmetropolitan
areas include counties in micropolitan statistical areas and rural counties.

®  Micropolitan statistical areas as defined by the OMB contain an urban cluster with 10,000 to
49,999 residents. Adjacent counties with a high degree of economic integration (as measured by
commuting to work) with that core are also classified as part of the micropolitan statistical area.
Approximately 85% of micropolitan statistical areas comprise only one county."

® Counties that are not classified by the OMB as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area
are classified as “rural counties” for this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as
completely rural areas.

When possible, indicator data in this report are presented for three categories: metropolitan areas, micropolitan
areas, and rural counties. In some cases, limited sample sizes or number of cases or issues with data reliability
required that data be limited to two categories: metropolitan areas and nonmetropolitan areas comprising
micropolitan areas and rural counties.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.

=1
=3
@)
O_
-
il
=
-




c
.9
O

=)
=
2
=

Race and Ethnicity

Every effort is made to include data breakouts by race and ethnicity for regular indicators in the full America’s
Children report and for selected indicators in this year’s Brief. Unless otherwise noted, data by race and ethnicity
in this report have implemented the Revisions to the Standards for the Classification of Federal Data on Race and

Ethnicity (hereafter referred to as standards on race and ethnicity) issued in 1997 by the OMB (https://www.gpo.
gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-1997-10-30/pdf/97-28653.pdf). The 1997 standards on race and ethnicity allow for observer
or proxy identification of race but clearly state a preference for self-classification. Data on race and Hispanic
origin are collected separately. Persons of Hispanic origin may be of any race. Data in this report are generally
presented for the following six race and Hispanic origin groups: American Indian or Alaska Native, non-
Hispanic; Asian, non-Hispanic; Black or African American, non-Hispanic; Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific
Islander, non-Hispanic; White, non-Hispanic; and Hispanic or Latino. On the charts, shortened labels often

are used because of limited space.

The 1997 standards on race and ethnicity also offer an opportunity for respondents to select more than one of
the five race groups, leading to many possible multiple-race categories. These standards allow for two basic ways
of defining a race group. A group such as Black may be defined as those who reported Black and no other race
(the race-alone or single-race concept) or those who reported Black regardless of whether they also reported
another race (the race-alone or-in-combination concept). In this report, indicators present data using the first
approach (single race). Use of the single-race population does not imply that it is the preferred method of
presenting or analyzing data. Generally, a small percentage of people report two or more races. When possible,
estimates for this group are shown separately. All groups not shown separately are included in the totals.

Statistical Significance

Most data in this report are estimates based on a sample of the population and are therefore subject to sampling
error. Differences between estimates are tested for statistical significance at either the 0.05 or 0.10 cutoff level,
according to agency standards; all differences discussed in the report are statistically significant according to

the standards of the agency responsible for the data. Agency details about statistical reporting standards for
indicators included in the Americas Children report and standard error tables for select indicators are available
online at https://www.childstats.gov.

For Further Information on the Forum

The Forum’s website (https://www.childstats.gov) also includes this additional information:

B Detailed data for indicators discussed in this Brief as well as trend data and other America’s Children
indicators not discussed here.

Data source descriptions and agency contact information.
Americas Children reports from 1997 to the present and other Forum reports.

Links to Forum agencies, their online data tools, and various international data sources.

Forum news and information on the Forum’s overall structure and organization.

America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, 2020
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Demographic Background
Understanding the changing demographic characteristics of America’s children is critical for shaping social

programs and policies. Demographic composition provides an important context for understanding the
indicators presented in this report and provides a glimpse of American families.

Percentage of children ages 0-17 in the United States by metropolitan status, 2018
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NOTE: The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining
counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas.
Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. The U.S. Census Bureau reviewed this data product for
unauthorized disclosure of confidential information and has approved the disclosure avoidance practices applied to this release.

CBDRB-FY2020-POP001-0123.
SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey.

B In 2018, 86.3% of children lived in metropolitan
areas, 8.3% of children lived in micropolitan
areas, and 5.4% of children lived in rural areas.

Bullet contains references to data in Table BRIEFI ar childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.



http://childstats.gov

Race and Hispanic Origin Composition

The United States is racially and ethnically diverse. Racial and ethnic composition also may vary by geographic area.

Percentage of children ages 0-17 in the United States by race, Hispanic origin, and metropolitan
status, 2018
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NOTE: NH = non-Hispanic origin; AIAN = American Indian or Alaska Native; and NHPI = Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander. The 1997
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) standards on race and ethnicity are used to classify persons into one of the following five racial
groups: White, Black or African American, Asian, American Indian or Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander. Each
group is limited to the non-Hispanic population, with the exception of the Hispanic category itself. Federal surveys give respondents the option of
reporting more than one race. Therefore, two ways of defining a race group are possible. A group such as Black may be defined as those who
report Black and no other race or those who report Black regardless of whether they also report another race. This indicator shows data using the
first approach. Those reporting more than one race were classified in the “Two or more races, NH” category. Data on race and Hispanic origin
are collected separately. Persons of Hispanic origin may be of any race. The OMB classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan
statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas,
as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. The U.S. Census Bureau
reviewed this data product for unauthorized disclosure of confidential information and has approved the disclosure avoidance practices applied
to this release. CBDRB-FY2020-POP001-0123.

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey.

B  [n 2018, of all U.S. children: 50.0% were B [n 2018, there were more Black, non-Hispanic
White, non-Hispanic; 25.9% were Hispanic; children; Asian, non-Hispanic children; and
13.3% were Black, non-Hispanic; 5.0% were Two or more race, non-Hispanic children in
Two or more races, non-Hispanic; 4.6% were metropolitan areas than in micropolitan or rural
Asian, non-Hispanic; 0.8% were American areas. There were also more Hispanic children in
Indian or Alaska Native, non-Hispanic; 0.4% metropolitan areas (27.3%) than in micropolitan
were some other race, non-Hispanic; and 0.2% areas (15.2%) or rural areas (10.9%).
were Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander,

non-Hispanic. B In 2018, no racial or Hispanic group accounted

for more than 50% of children in metropolitan

B In 2018, White, non-Hispanic children and

American Indian or Alaska Native, non-Hispanic
children accounted for a larger percentage of the
population in nonmetropolitan (micropolitan and
rural) areas than in metropolitan areas.

areas, whereas White, non-Hispanic children
represented at least two-thirds of children in both
micropolitan and rural areas (68.4% and 72.4%,
respectively).

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEFI at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Adolescent Births

Childbirth during adolescence often is associated with long-term difficulties for the mother and her child.
Compared with babies born to older mothers, babies born to adolescent mothers, particularly younger
adolescent mothers, are at higher risk of low birthweight and infant mortality.'*'* These babies are more likely
to grow up in homes that offer lower levels of emotional support and cognitive stimulation, and they are less
likely to earn high school diplomas.'"> For the mothers, giving birth during adolescence is associated with
limited educational attainment, which in turn can reduce employment prospects and earnings potential.’

Birth rates for females ages 15-19 by race and Hispanic origin and metropolitan status, 2018

Live births per 1,000 females ages 15-19
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NOTE: NH = non-Hispanic origin; AIAN = American Indian or Alaska Native; and NHPI = Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander. Race refers
to the mother’s race. The 1997 U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) standards on race and ethnicity are used to classify persons into one
of the following five racial groups: White, Black or African American, Asian, American Indian or Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian or Other
Pacific Islander. All categories are single race. Included in the total, but not shown separately, are people reporting two or more races. Data on race
and Hispanic origin are collected and reported separately. Persons of Hispanic origin may be of any race. The OMB classifies counties as within a
metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may
include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Vital Statistics System.

B The birth rate among females ages 15-19 was [ |
17 per 1,000 in 2018. The birth rate was highest
for adolescents living in rural counties (26 per
1,000), followed by those living in micropolitan
counties (24 per 1,000) and metropolitan
counties (16 per 1,000).

For White, non-Hispanic and American Indian
or Alaska Native, non-Hispanic adolescents in
2018, the birth rate was highest for those living
in rural counties and lowest for those living in
metropolitan counties.

B For Black, non-Hispanic and Asian, non-Hispanic

B [n 2018, the birth rate among females ages 15-19
was 30 per 1,000 for American Indian or Alaska
Native, non-Hispanic; 27 per 1,000 for Hispanic;
27 per 1,000 for Native Hawaiian or Other
Pacific Islander, non-Hispanic; 26 per 1,000 for
Black, non-Hispanic; 12 per 1,000 for White,
non-Hispanic; and 3 per 1,000 for Asian, non-
Hispanic adolescents.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF2 ar childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

adolescents in 2018, the birth rate was highest for
those living in micropolitan and rural counties
and lowest for those living in metropolitan
counties.

For Hispanic and Native Hawaiian or Other
Pacific Islander, non-Hispanic adolescents in
2018, the birth rate was higher for those living
in micropolitan counties compared with those
living in metropolitan counties.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Child Maltreatment

Child maltreatment includes physical, sexual, and psychological abuse, as well as neglect (including medical
neglect). Maltreatment in general is associated with various negative outcomes for children, including
developmental delay, lower school achievement, juvenile delinquency, substance abuse, and mental health
problems. Many of these problems can follow maltreated children into adulthood.'® Certain types of
maltreatment can result in long-term physical, social, and emotional problems—even death. For example,
abusive head trauma can result in mental retardation, cerebral palsy, or paralysis.!” Please note that the calculation
of child maltreatment changed recently and is not comparable with data presented in editions prior to Americas
Children, 2017. Specifically, rates are now based on unduplicated counts, and alternative response victims are no
longer included.

Rate of substantiated maltreatment of children ages 0-17 by metropolitan status, 2018

Victimization rate per 1,000 children ages 0-17
20

[=
Q
S
C

i
>
=

LL]

.0
O
O

V9

O
=
O

2>
&
O

L.

O,

Metropolitan Micropolitan Rural

NOTE: The data in this figure are rates of maltreatment based on investigations and assessments by Child Protective Services (CPS) that found the
child to be a victim of one or more types of maltreatment. The rates are based on unique counts of victims of maltreatment. A unique count includes
each child only one time regardless of the number of times the child was determined to be a victim. Maltreatment includes the dispositions of
substantiated or indicated. Data may include state resubmissions and may not match previously published data. Rates are based on the number of
states submitting data to the National Child Abuse and Neglect Data System (NCANDS) each year; states include the District of Columbia and the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The number of states reporting may vary slightly from year to year: not all states report on all measures, and not all
states report in all years. Additional technical notes are available in the annual reports titled Child Maltreatment. These reports are available at
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/cb/research-data-technology/statistics-research/child-maltreatment. The Justice for Victims of Trafficking Act of 2015
included an amendment to the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act under Title VIII—Better Response for Victims of Child Sex Trafficking by
adding a requirement to collect and report sex trafficking data. States began reporting sex trafficking as a maltreatment type to NCANDS with their
Federal fiscal year 2018 data submissions as required by a change in the law. For this first year of reporting, 27 states submitted data about victims
of sex trafficking to NCANDS; as a result, sex trafficking rates underrepresent the true national rate, and rates for 2018 are not directly comparable
with previous years. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The
remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely
rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. Metropolitan status calculations do not include
Puerto Rico. Counties were classified based on the county of the child's residence at the time of the alleged abuse. If the child was in out-of-home
care at the time of the report, the county of the facility or foster home should be used. This county may or may not be the county where the abuse
occurred and may or may not be the county in which the CPS response occurred.

SOURCE: Administration for Children and Families, National Child Abuse and Neglect Data System.

B Maltreatment rates were substantially lower in
metropolitan areas (8.1 per 1,000 children) than
in micropolitan areas (12.1 per 1,000 children)
and rural areas (13.0 per 1,000 children) in 2018.

America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, 2020
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Percentage of substantiated maltreatment of children ages 0-17 by malireatment type and

metropolitan status, 2018
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NOTE: This figure represents a duplicated count of maltreatments, based on a unique count of victims. Bars may total to more than 100%
because a single child may be the victim of multiple kinds of maltreatment. Substantiated maltreatment includes the dispositions of
substantiated or indicated. Additional technical notes are available in the annual reports titled Child Maltreatment. These reports are available
at https://www.acf.hhs.gov/cb/research-data-technology/statistics-research /child-maltreatment. The Justice for Victims of Trafficking Act of
2015 included an amendment to the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act under Title VIll—Better Response for Victims of Child Sex
Trafficking by adding a requirement to collect and report sex trafficking data. States began reporting sex trafficking as a maltreatment type to
NCANDS with their Federal fiscal year 2018 data submissions as required by a change in the law. For this first year of reporting, 27 states
submitted data about victims of sex trafficking to NCANDS; as a result, sex trafficking rates underrepresent the true national rate, and rates for
2018 are not directly comparable with previous years. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan
or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include
small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.
Metropolitan status calculations do not include Puerto Rico. Counties were classified based on the county of the child's residence at the time of
the alleged abuse. If the child was in outofhome care at the time of the report, the county of the facility or foster home should be used. This
county may or may not be the county where the abuse occurred and may or may not be the county in which the Child Protective Services
response occurred.

SOURCE: Administration for Children and Families, National Child Abuse and Neglect Data System.

Neglect is by far the most common form of
maltreatment, with three-fourths of all maltreated
children found to have been neglected and

nearly identical percentages across metropolitan,
micropolitan, and rural areas. The percentage

of reports involving physical (18%) and sexual
(9%) abuse also were similar across geographic

Bullets contain references to data in Tables BRIEF3 and BRIEF4 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

areas, with only slightly lower percentages in
metropolitan areas compared with micropolitan
and rural areas. Rates of physical abuse were 17%
in metropolitan areas and 19% in micropolitan
and rural areas. Rates of sexual abuse were 9% in
metropolitan areas and 10% in micropolitan and
rural areas.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Child Poverty

Children living in poverty are vulnerable to environmental, educational, health, and safety risks. Compared
with their peers, children living in poverty are more likely to have cognitive, behavioral, and socioemotional
difhiculties. Throughout their lifetimes, they are more likely to complete fewer years of school and experience
more years of unemployment.'®*! These data are based on the official poverty measure for the United States
as defined in U.S. Office of Management and Budget Statistical Policy Directive 14.%

Percentage of children ages 0-17 living in poverty by race, Hispanic origin, and metropolitan status,
2018

I £

Total White, NH Black, NH AIAN, NH Asian, NH Hispanic
# Total Ml Metropolitan M Micropolitan B Rural

Percent
100

2
50

40

3

o

)
)
O
-
S
(7
=
S
O
=
),
=
=
@)
-
O
O
L

2

o

o

0

Nonmetropolitan

NOTE: NH = non-Hispanic origin and AIAN = American Indian or Alaska Native. In 2018, the poverty threshold for a two-parent, two-child family
was $25,465. The 1997 U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) standards on race and ethnicity are used to classify persons into one of the
following five racial groups: White, Black or African American, Asian, American Indian or Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific
Islander. Federal surveys give respondents the option of reporting more than one race. Therefore, two ways of defining a race group are possible. A
group such as Black may be defined as those who reported Black and no other race or those who report Black regardless of whether they also report
another race. This indicator shows data using the first approach. Included in the total, but not shown separately, are Native Hawaiian or Other
Pacific Islander, people reporting some other race, or people reporting two or more races. Data on race and Hispanic origin are collected
separately. Persons of Hispanic origin may be of any race. The OMB classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area.
The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely
rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. The U.S. Census Bureau reviewed this data product
for unauthorized disclosure of confidential information and has approved the disclosure avoidance practices applied fo this release.
CBDRB-FY2020-POP001-0123.

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey.

B In 2018, children ages 0-17 living in metropolitan ™  Among the geographical areas, poverty rates for

areas had the lowest poverty rates. In 2018, 17% White, non-Hispanic; American Indian or Alaska
of children living in metropolitan areas lived in Native, non-Hispanic; and Asian, non-Hispanic
poverty, 22% of children living in micropolitan children ages 0-17 were highest in rural areas.
areas lived in poverty, and 23% of children living Poverty rates for Black, non-Hispanic children

in rural areas lived in poverty. were highest in micropolitan areas, and poverty

rates for Hispanic children were highest in
nonmetropolitan areas. The difference between
micropolitan and rural areas was not statistically
significant but both were higher than the poverty
rate in metropolitan areas.

B Among the racial and ethnic groups presented,
Black, non-Hispanic children ages 0-17 had
the highest poverty rates in metropolitan and
micropolitan areas in 2018. In metropolitan
areas, 31% of Black, non-Hispanic children
lived in poverty. Nearly half (47%) of all Black,
non-Hispanic children in micropolitan areas
lived in poverty.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEFS at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Food Security

A family’s ability to provide for its children’s nutritional needs is linked to the family’s food securicy—that is, to
its access at all times to adequate food for an active, healthy life for all household members.”® The food security
status of households is based on self-reported difficulty in obtaining enough food, reduced food intake, reduced
diet quality, and anxiety about an adequate food supply. In some households classified as food insecure, only
adults’ diets and food intakes were affected, but in a majority of such households, children’s eating patterns

also were disrupted to some extent, and the quality and variety of their diets were adversely affected.*

Percentage of children ages 0-17 in food-insecure households by metropolitan status, 2017-2018
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NOTE: Food-insecure households are those in which either adults or children or both were “food insecure,” meaning that, at times, they were
unable to acquire adequate food for active, healthy living because the household had insufficient money and other resources for food. The U.S.
Office of Management and Budget classifies some counties as within a metropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are considered
nonmetropolitan. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau, Current Population Survey Food Security Supplement; tabulated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Economic
Research Service and Food and Nutrition Service.

B [n 2018, 11.2 million children (15% of all B In 2018, the percentage of children in households
children) lived in households that were classified that were food insecure was higher outside
as food insecure. metropolitan areas (18%) than in metropolitan

areas (15%). The percentage of children in
food-insecure households in metropolitan areas
decreased from 2017 (17%) to 2018 (15%).

B The percentage of children living in food-insecure
households in 2018 (15%) was statistically
different from the percentage in 2017 (17%).

B In 2018, the percentages of children living in
food-insecure households were above the national
average of 15% for Black, non-Hispanic (26%)
and Hispanic (18%).

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEFG at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Health Insurance Coverage

Children and adolescents need regular and ongoing health care to treat acute and chronic conditions and
provide injury care and routine preventative care, including vaccinations.” Health insurance is a major
determinant of access to health care.? Children with health insurance are more likely than children without
insurance to have a regular and accessible source of health care. The percentage of children who have health
insurance is one indication of the extent to which families can obtain preventive care or health care for a sick
or injured child.””*
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Percentage of children ages 0-17 by health insurance coverage status at the time of interview and
metropolitan status, 2018
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NOTE: A child was considered uninsured if he or she did not have any private health insurance, Medicare, Medicaid, Children’s Health Insurance
Program (CHIP), a state-sponsored or other government-sponsored health plan, or a military plan. A child also was defined as uninsured if he or
she had only Indian Health Service coverage or had only a private plan that paid for one type of service, such as accidents or dental care. Private
health insurance includes children covered by any comprehensive private insurance plan (including health maintenance organizations and
preferred provider organizations). These plans include those obtained through an employer, purchased directly, purchased through local or
community programs, or purchased through the Health Insurance Marketplace or a state-based exchange. Public health insurance includes
children who do not have private coverage, but who have Medicaid or other state-sponsored health plans, including CHIP. The U.S. Office of
Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified
and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties
include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Health Interview Survey.

B In 2018, 55% of children ages 017 had B The percentage of children ages 017 with private
private health insurance, 37% had public health insurance was higher for those living in
health insurance, and 5% were uninsured. metropolitan counties (56%) compared with

L . . 0
B The percentage of children ages 0-17 who those living in micropolitan counties (47%).

were uninsured was higher for those living in B The percentage of children ages 017 with public
micropolitan counties (8%) compared with health insurance was lower for those living in
those living in metropolitan counties (5%). metropolitan counties (36%) compared with

those living in micropolitan (43%) and rural
counties (45%).

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF7 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Oral Health—Dental Visits

Dental caries (i.e., cavities) is one of the most common diseases of childhood.?” Oral health care is essential
for treatment of dental caries and to safeguard oral health.*® Regular dental visits provide an opportunity for
prevention, early diagnosis, and treatment of oral and craniofacial diseases and conditions. Routine dental
visits are recommended beginning at age 1.°!

Percentage of children ages 5-17 with a dental visit in the past year by metropolitan status, 2018
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NOTE: Children were identified as having a dental visit in the past year by asking parents, “About how long has it been since your child last saw
a dentist?” Parents were directed to include all types of dentists, such as orthodontists, oral surgeons, and all other dental specialists, as well as
dental hygienists. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The
remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely
rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Health Interview Survey.

B In 2018, 91% of children ages 5-17 had a dental ~ ®  The percentage of children ages 5-17 with a
visit in the past year. dental visit in the past year was 91% for children
living in metropolitan counties, 88% for children
living in micropolitan counties, and 90% for
children living in rural counties. There was no
statistically significant difference in dental visits
in the past year by metropolitan status.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEFS at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Housing Problems

Housing that is inadequate, crowded, or too costly can pose serious problems to children’s physical, psychological,
and material well-being.”*** Housing cost burdens, especially at high levels, are risk factors for negative

outcomes for children, including eviction and homelessness, overcrowding, poor nutrition, frequent moving,

lack of supervision while parents are at work, and low cognitive achievement.**¢ The percentage of households
with children that report living in physically inadequate,’” crowded, or costly housing provides insight into

how differing housing types, conditions, and costs of different housing markets affect housing choices and
children’s well-being. Housing problems are presented for metropolitan, micropolitan, and rural areas, with
further breakdowns between principal cities and other, suburban portions of metropolitan areas to shed light

on challenges such as high housing costs that are found in urban centers.

FIUIAI0) Percentage of households with children ages 0-17 that have housing problems by metropolitan

status, 2017

Percent
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total

Total
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[l Cost burden greater than 30%
of income (moderate or severe
cost burden)

housing

Metropolitan

# Physically inadequate

Metropolitan

I " /“

Micropolitan Rural

other

Nonmetropolitan

B Crowded housing  "# Any of the three housing

problems shown

NOTE: The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining
counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas.
Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. Principal cities of metropolitan areas also are identified.

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau and Department of Housing and Urban Development, American Housing Survey; tabulated by the U.S. Department

of Housing and Urban Development.

In 2017, 39% of U.S. households with children
had one or more of three housing problems:
physically inadequate housing, crowded housing,
or a housing cost burden greater than 30% of
household income.*®

Households with children faced greater
prevalence of housing problems in principal
cities of metropolitan areas (46%) than elsewhere
in metropolitan areas (37%), or in micropolitan
(36%) or rural (32%) areas.

In 2017, about 5% of households with children
had problems with physically inadequate housing.
Problems with physically inadequate housing were
less prevalent in the nonprincipal city portions

of metropolitan areas than in the principal cities,
micropolitan areas, or rural areas.

Housing cost burdens were the most common
type of housing problem, affecting 33% of
households with children in 2017. The prevalence
was greater in principal cities of metropolitan areas
(39%) than in nonprincipal city portions (32%),
micropolitan areas (29%), or rural areas (24%).

America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, 2020



FISUCMRD Percentage of households with children ages 0-17 that have moderate or severe housing cost
burdens by metropolitan status, 2017

Nonmetropolitan

[l Cost burden greater than 30% of income ~ # Cost burden greater than 50% of income
(moderate or severe cost burden) (severe cost burden)

NOTE: The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining
counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural
areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. Principal cities of metropolitan areas also are

identified.

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau and Department of Housing and Urban Development, American Housing Survey; tabulated by the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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B The proportion of families with children having B Severe cost burdens were significantly more likely
severe housing cost burdens, defined as paying to occur in principal cities of metropolitan areas
more than half of their income for housing, was (19%) than in nonprincipal city portions (13%),
15% in 2017. micropolitan areas (14%), or rural areas (10%).

B Among families with children experiencing any
cost burden, 45% had severe cost burdens.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF9 ar childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Child and Adolescent Mortality

Medical and public health advances have contributed to reductions in the number of deaths among children
and adolescents.? Deaths from infectious disease and cancer have declined with the introduction of vaccination,
antibiotics, and the improved detection and treatment of cancer.” However, 19,660 deaths occurred among
those ages 1-19 in 2018.% Knowing the patterns of the leading causes of death for this age group may help
target medical and public health interventions.>*

FNCEPY Death rates among children ages 1-4 by selected leading causes of death and metropolitan status,
2018
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NOTE: Underlying causes of death are based on the International Classification of Diseases, 10th revision. Unintentional injuries is another term
for accidents. Unintentional injury deaths are identified by codes VO1-X59 and Y85-Y86. Cancer (malignant neoplasms) deaths are identified
by codes COO-C97. Birth defect (congenital malformations, deformations, and chromosomal abnormalities) deaths are identified by codes
Q00-Q99. Homicide deaths are identified by codes U01-U02, X85-Y09, and Y87.1. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies
counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this
report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in
micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Vital Statistics System.

B In 2018, the all-cause death rate among children
ages 1—4 was 24 deaths per 100,000 children.
Children in rural counties had the highest death
rate (36 per 100,000), followed by children in
micropolitan counties (31 per 100,000) and
metropolitan counties (23 per 100,000).

B The death rate for unintentional injuries was
8 deaths per 100,000 children. Unintentional
injury death rates were highest for children in

rural counties (16 per 100,000), followed by
micropolitan counties (12 per 100,000) and
metropolitan counties (7 per 100,000).

In 2018, the death rates among children ages
1—4 was 2 per 100,000 each for cancer, birth
defects, and homicide. There was no statistically
significant difference by metropolitan status for
these causes of death.

America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, 2020



FSUCME) Death rates among children ages 5-14 by selected leading causes of death and metropolitan status,

2018
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t Reporting standards not met; the number of deaths is too few to calculate a reliable rate.

NOTE: Underlying causes of death are based on the International Classification of Diseases, 10th revision. Unintentional injuries is another term for
accidents. Unintentional injury deaths are identified by codes VO1-X59 and Y85-Y86. Cancer (malignant neoplasms) deaths are identified by codes
C00-C97. Suicide deaths are identified by codes U03, X60-X84, and Y87.0. Most suicides in the 5-14 age group are among those ages 10-14.
Birth defect (congenital malformations, deformations, and chromosomal abnormalities) deaths are identified by codes Q00-Q99. Homicide deaths
are identified by codes U01-U02, X85-Y09, and Y87.1. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or
a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small
urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Vital Statistics System.

In 2018, the all-cause death rate among children
ages 5—14 was 13 deaths per 100,000 children.
Children in rural counties had the highest death
rate (18 per 100,000), followed by children in
micropolitan counties (16 per 100,000) and
metropolitan counties (13 per 100,000).

Unintentional injuries were the leading cause of
death among children ages 5-14 in 2018 (3.5 per
100,000), followed by cancer (2.1 per 100,000),
suicide (1.5 per 100,000), birth defects (0.9 per
100,000), and homicide (0.7 per 100,000).
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B Death rates for unintentional injuries was
highest for children in rural counties (7 per
100,000), followed by micropolitan counties
(5 per 100,000) and metropolitan counties
(3 per 100,000).

B Death rates from suicide were higher for children
in rural (2 per 100,000) and micropolitan (3 per
100,000) counties than in metropolitan counties
(1 per 100,000).

B In 2018, there was no statistically significant
difference by metropolitan status for death rates
from cancer, birth defects, and homicide among

children ages 5-14.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.




Child and Adolescent Mortality —cont.

ST Death rates among adolescents ages 15-19 by selected leading causes of death and metropolitan

All causes Unintentional Suicide Homicide Cancer Heart disease
injuries

# Total Ml Metropolitan M Micropolitan B Rural

Nonmetropolitan

NOTE: Underlying causes of death are based on the International Classification of Diseases, 10th revision. Unintentional injuries is another term for
accidents. Unintentional injury deaths are identified by codes VO1-X59 and Y85-Y86. Suicide deaths are identified by codes U03, X60-X84, and
Y87.0. Homicide deaths are identified by codes U01-U02, X85-Y09, and Y87.1. Cancer (malignant neoplasms) deaths are identified by codes
CO0-C97. Heart disease deaths are identified by codes 100-109, 111, 113, and 120-151. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies
counties as within a mefropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report.
Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan
statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Vital Statistics System.
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B In 2018, the all-cause death rate among B Death rates for suicide were higher for adolescents
adolescents ages 15—19 was 49 deaths per in rural (17 per 100,000) and micropolitan
100,000 adolescents. Adolescents in rural counties counties (16 per 100,000) than in metropolitan
had the highest death rate (69 per 100,000), counties (11 per 100,000).

followed by adolescents in micropolitan counties
(59 per 100,000) and metropolitan counties
(47 per 100,000).

B Death rates for homicide were higher for
adolescents in metropolitan counties (9 per
100,000) than in micropolitan (6 per 100,000)

B Unintentional injuries were the leading cause and rural counties (5 per 100,000).
of death among adolescents ages 15-19 in
2018 (17 per 100,000), followed by suicide
(11 per 100,000), homicide (8 per 100,000),
cancer (3 per 100,000), and heart disease (1 per
100,000). B In 2018, there was no statistically significant

difference by metropolitan status for death rates

from cancer among adolescents ages 15—19.

B Death rates for heart disease were higher for
adolescents in rural counties (2 per 100,000)
than in metropolitan counties (1 per 100,000).

B Death rates for unintentional injuries were
highest for adolescents in rural counties (32 per
100,000), followed by micropolitan counties
(25 per 100,000) and metropolitan counties
(15 per 100,000).

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF10 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

America’s Children in Brief: Key National Indicators of Well-Being, 2020



http://childstats.gov

Regular Cigarette Smoking

Yed

Smoking has serious long-term consequences, including the risk of smoking-related diseases and premature
death, as well as the increased health care costs of treating associated illnesses.*> More than 480,000 annual
deaths are attributable to tobacco use, making tobacco more lethal than all other illicit substances. Nearly

90% of smokers start smoking before age 18. Each day, more than 1,500 youth, ages 12—17, smoke their first
cigarette, and another nearly 1,000 youth and young adults who are occasional smokers become daily smokers.*
The high rate of incidence and the consequences of cigarette smoking underscore the importance of studying
patterns of smoking among adolescents. However, the rates represented here do not reflect data on vaping
among youth.
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Percentage of 8th-, 10th-, and 12th-grade students who reported smoking cigarettes
daily in the past 30 days by metropolitan status, 2019
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NOTE: Daily cigarette smoking is defined as the use of one or more cigarettes per day in the past 30 days. The U.S. Office of Management and
Budget classifies some counties as within a metropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are considered nonmetropolitan. Nonmetropolitan
counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Institute on Drug Abuse, Monitoring the Future Survey.

B Approximately 1% of 8th- and 10th-grade B There was no significant difference between
students and 2% of 12th-grade students reported the 2% of 8th-grade students living in
smoking cigarettes daily in the past 30 days in nonmetropolitan areas compared with the
2019. 1% of 8th-grade students living in metropolitan

areas who reported daily cigarette use in the

- 0 i L
In 2019, 5% of 12th-grade students living in past 30 days.

nonmetropolitan areas reported daily cigarette use

in the past 30 days. This was higher than the 2% B Overall, a higher percentage of 8th-, 10th-, and

of 12th-grade students living in metropolitan areas 12th-grade students living in nonmetropolitan
reporting daily cigarette use in the past month. areas reported daily cigarette use in the past
30 days.

B Among 10th-grade students living in
nonmetropolitan areas in 2019, 2% reported
daily cigarette use in the past month compared
with 1% of 10th-grade students living in
metropolitan areas.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF11 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Alcohol Use

Alcohol is the most common psychoactive substance used by adolescents. Its use is associated with motor
vehicle accidents, injuries, and deaths; problems in school and the workplace; and fighting, crime, and other
serious consequences.* Early onset of binge drinking, defined here as five or more alcoholic beverages in a row
or during a single occasion in the previous 2 weeks, may be especially problematic, potentially increasing the
likelihood of these negative outcomes.
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FSMICHE) Percentage of 8th-, 10th-, and 12th-grade students who reported having five or more alcoholic
beverages in a row in the past 2 weeks by metropolitan status, 2019
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NOTE: Binge drinking is defined as having five or more alcoholic beverages in a row in the past 2 weeks. The U.S. Office of Management and
Budget classifies some counties as within a metropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are considered nonmetropolitan. Nonmetropolitan
counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Institute on Drug Abuse, Monitoring the Future Survey.

B [n 2019, 4% of 8th-, 9% of 10th-, and 14% with 10% of those living in nonmetropolitan
of 12th-grade students reported binge drinking. areas and 8% of those living in metropolitan
B Binge drinking was reported by 18% of 12th- areas reporting use.
grade students living in nonmetropolitan areas B Likewise, binge drinking among 8th-grade
compared with 14% of 12th-grade students students did not differ by geographic area,
living in metropolitan areas. with 5% of those living in nonmetropolitan

areas and 4% of those living in metropolitan

B Among 10th-grade students, there was no ’
areas reporting use.

significant difference in reported binge drinking,

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF12 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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High School Completion

A high school diploma or its equivalent is a prerequisite for many entry-level jobs and necessary for the
pursuit of postsecondary education. Therefore, the attainment of a high school diploma or its equivalent is
one indicator that a person has acquired the basic academic, social, and other life skills needed to function in
today’s society. Persons who graduated from high school tend to have better economic and life outcomes than
their peers who did not graduate. Therefore, it is important to measure the percentage of young adults ages
18-24 with a high school diploma or equivalent and investigate how this percentage varies across time and
for different groups of students.

FSCMYA Percentage of young adults ages 18-24 who have completed high school by metropolitan status,
2010 and 2018
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NOTE: Diploma equivalents include alternative credentials obtained by passing examinations such as the General Educational Development (GED)
test. This figure excludes those still enrolled in high school or enrolled in a lower education level. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget
classifies some counties as within a metropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are considered nonmetropolitan. Nonmetropolitan counties
include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas. Total includes those whose household metropolitan status was “not identified,” which is
not separately shown.

SOURCE: U.S. Census Bureau, Current Population Survey, School Enrollment Supplement.

B In 2018, about 94% of young adults ages B Between 2010 and 2018, the high school
18-24 had completed high school with a diploma completion rate for young adults who lived in
or an alternative credential, such as a General metropolitan areas increased from 91% to 94%,
Educational Development (GED) certificate. whereas the completion rate for young adults
The high school completion rate has increased who lived in nonmetropolitan areas was not
since 2010, when it was 90%. measurably different between these two years

(88% in 2010 and 89% in 2018). In both 2010
and 2018, the completion rate for young adults
who lived in metropolitan areas was higher
than the rate for young adults who lived in
nonmetropolitan areas.

B In 2018, the high school completion rate for
young adults who lived in metropolitan areas
was 94%, which is higher than the 89% high
school completion rate for their peers living in
nonmetropolitan areas.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF13 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.
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Infant Mortality

Infant mortality is defined as the death of an infant before his or her first birthday. Infant mortality is related to
the underlying health of the mother, public health practices, socioeconomic conditions, and the availability and
use of appropriate health care for infants and pregnant women. 4

FSIICHE:) Death rates among infants by race and Hispanic origin of mother and metropolitan status, 2017-2018

Infant deaths per 1,000 live births
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t Reporting standards not met; the number of deaths is too few to calculate a reliable rate.

NOTE: NH = non-Hispanic origin. Infant deaths are deaths before an infant’s first birthday. Among Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander
infants, the number of infant deaths is generally too small to meet reliability standards and therefore are not shown. Race refers to the mother’s
race. The 1997 U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) standards on race and ethnicity are used to classify persons into one of the
following racial groups: White, Black or African American, Asian, and American Indian or Alaska Native. All categories are single race.
Included in the total, but not shown separately, are people reporting two or more races. Data on race and Hispanic origin are collected and
reported separately. Persons of Hispanic origin may be of any race. The OMB classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan
statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas,
as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Vital Statistics System.

In 2017-2018, the infant mortality rate was B For Black, non-Hispanic and Asian, non-Hispanic
6 infant deaths per 1,000 live births. Infant infants in 2017-2018, the mortality rate was
mortality rates were highest in rural counties higher for those living in micropolitan counties
(6.8 per 1,000), followed by micropolitan than those living in metropolitan counties.
counties (6.4 per 1,000) and metropolitan B For Hispanic and American Indian or Alaska

counties (5.6 per 1,000).

In 2017-2018, the mortality rate was 11 per
1,000 for Black, non-Hispanic; 9 per 1,000

for American Indian or Alaska Native, non-
Hispanic; 5 per 1,000 for White, non-Hispanic;
5 per 1,000 for Hispanic; and 4 per 1,000 for
Asian, non-Hispanic infants.

For White, non-Hispanic infants in 2017-2018,
the mortality rate was higher for those living in
rural and micropolitan counties than those living
in metropolitan counties.

Native, non-Hispanic infants in 2017-2018, the
mortality rate was higher for those living in rural
counties than those living in micropolitan and
metropolitan counties.

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF14 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Adolescent Depression

Depression has a significant impact on adolescent development and well-being.” Adolescent depression can
adversely affect school and work performance, impair peer and family relationships, and exacerbate the severity
of other health conditions such as asthma and obesity.”*~>* Depressive episodes often persist, recur, or continue
into adulthood.” Youth who have had a major depressive episode (MDE) in the past year are at a greater risk
for suicide and are more likely than other youth to initiate alcohol and other drug use, experience concurrent
substance use disorders, and smoke daily.*>*>

FSNCHED Percentage of youth ages 12-17 who experienced a major depressive episode (MDE) in the past year
by gender and metropolitan status, 2018

Percent
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#Z Total Wl Metropolitan I Micropolitan B Rural
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NOTE: MDE is defined as a period of at least 2 weeks when a person experienced a depressed mood or loss of interest or pleasure in daily
activities plus at least four additional symptoms of depression (such as problems with sleep, eating, energy, concentration, and feelings of self-worth)
as described in the fourth edition of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget classifies
counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered rural in this report.
Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical
and rural areas.

SOURCE: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, National Survey on Drug Use and Health.

B In 2018, 14% of the population ages 12-17 had ™  Among youth ages 12-17 in 2018, however, the

at least one MDE during the past year, which prevalence of MDE was more than twice as high
did not differ by metropolitan status (14% in among females (22% in metropolitan areas, 22%
metropolitan areas, 15% in micropolitan areas, in micropolitan areas, and 21% in rural areas) as
and 13% in rural areas). among males (8% in metropolitan areas, 8% in

micropolitan areas, and 7% in rural areas).

For further information, visit https://www.childstats.gov.




Adolescent Depression —cont.

FIUIEWA) Percentage of those receiving treatment for depression among youth ages 12-17 with at least one
major depressive episode (MDE) in the past year by metropolitan status, 2018

Percent
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NOTE: MDE is defined as a period of at least 2 weeks when a person experienced a depressed mood or loss of interest or pleasure in daily
activities plus at least four additional symptoms of depression (such as problems with sleep, eating, energy, concentration, and feelings of
self-worth) as described in the fourth edition of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. The U.S. Office of Management and
Budget classifies counties as within a metropolitan or a micropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are not classified and are considered
rural in this report. Rural counties may include small urban areas, as well as completely rural areas. Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in
micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, National Survey on Drug Use and Health.

B The percentage of youth with at least one
MDE in the past year receiving treatment
for depression was 41% in 2018, which did
not differ by metropolitan status (41% in
metropolitan areas, 50% in micropolitan areas,
and 40% in rural areas).

Bullets contain references to data in Tables BRIEF15, BRIEF16, BRIEF17 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Obesity

Children with obesity often become adults with obesity, with increased risks for a wide variety of poor health
outcomes, including diabetes, stroke, heart disease, arthritis, and certain cancers.’**” The consequences of obesity
for children and adolescents often are psychosocial but also include high blood pressure, diabetes, early puberty,
and asthma.””*® The prevalence of obesity among U.S. children changed relatively little from the early 1960s
through 1980; however, after 1980, it increased sharply.”” In addition to individual factors, such as diet and
physical activity, social, economic, and environmental forces may have contributed to the increased prevalence
of obesity.®’

FISNCWAD Percentage of children ages 6-17 with obesity by metropolitan status, 2013-2018

Percent
100

Z
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Total Metropolitan Nonmetropolitan

NOTE: Obesity for children and adolescents is defined as a body mass index (BMI) at or above the sex- and age-specific 95th percentile from the
2000 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Growth Charts (https://www.cdc.gov/growthcharts/). BMI is a measure of body fat based on
height and weight. It is calculated as a person’s weight in kilograms divided by the square of height in meters. The U.S. Office of Management
and Budget classifies some counties as within a metropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are considered nonmetropolitan.
Nonmetropolitan counties include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey.

B [n2013-2018, 20% of children ages 6-17 B The percentage of children ages 6-17 with obesity
had obesity. was higher for those living in nonmetropolitan
counties (25%) compared with those living in
metropolitan counties (19%).

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF1S at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Asthma

Asthma is a disease of the lungs that can cause wheezing, difficulty in breathing, and chest pain. It is one of

the most common chronic diseases among children. Asthma varies greatly in severity. Some children who have
been diagnosed with asthma may not experience any serious respiratory effects. Other children may have mild
symptoms or may respond well to management of their asthma, typically with medication. Some children with
asthma may, however, suffer serious attacks that greatly limit their activities, result in visits to emergency rooms
or hospitals, or, in rare cases, cause death.®’ Environmental factors such as air pollution and secondhand tobacco
smoke, along with infections, exercise, and allergens, can trigger asthma attacks in children who have the

disease.0?-%

M- W#) Percentage of children ages 0-17 who currently have asthma by metropolitan status, 2016-2018

Percent
100

\\

Total Metropolitan Nonmetropolitan

NOTE: Children are identified as ever diagnosed with asthma by asking parents “Has a doctor or other health professional EVER told you that your
child has asthma?” If the parent answered YES to this question, they were then asked “Does your child still have asthma?” The question “Does your
child still have asthma?” was introduced in 2001 and identifies children who currently have asthma. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget
classifies some counties as within a metropolitan statistical area. The remaining counties are considered nonmetropolitan. Nonmetropolitan counties
include counties in micropolitan statistical and rural areas.

SOURCE: National Center for Health Statistics, National Health Interview Survey.

B In2016-2018, 8.1% of children ages 0-17 of children who currently have asthma was
were reported to currently have asthma. 8.2% in nonmetropolitan areas. There was no

B In 2016-2018, the percentage of children statistically significant difference in the percentage
ages 0-17 in n;etropolitan areas reported to of children reported to currently have asthma

by metropolitan status.
currently have asthma was 8.1%. The percentage Y b

Bullets contain references to data in Table BRIEF19 at childstats.gov. Endnotes begin on page 27.
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Demographic Background
Child population*

4 N
Change
Previous Most recent between
value (year) value (year) years

.

Children ages O-17 in the United States 73.3 million 73.0 million
(2018) (2019) 1
Children as a percentage of the population*
Children ages 0-17 in the United States 22.4% (2018) 22.3%(2019) l
Racial and ethnic composition *
Children ages O-17 by race and Hispanic origin* *
White, nonHispanic 50.5%(2018) 50.2% (2019) l
Black, non-Hispanic 13.7% (2018 13.7% (2019) NS
American Indian or Alaska Native, non-Hispanic 0.8% (2018 0.8% (2019) NS
Asian, non-Hispanic 5.0% (2018 5.0% (2019) NS
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, non-Hispanic 0.2% (2018) 0.2% (2019) NS
Two or more races, non-Hispanic 4.3% (2018 4.4% (2019) 1
Hispanic 25.4% (2018 25.6% (2019) 1
Family and Social Environment
Family structure and children’s living arrangements
Children ages 0-17 living with two married parents 65% (2018 66% (2019) 1
Births to unmarried women
Births fo unmarried women ages 15-44 41.0 per 1,000 41.1 per 1,000
(2017) (2018 1
Births to unmarried women among all births 39.8% (2017) 39.6% (2018) l
Child care
Children ages 3-5, not yet enrolled in kindergarten with employed
mothers, whose primary child care arrangement was nonparental care
on a regular basis 88% (2012) 85% (2016 NS
Children ages 3-5, not yet enrolled in kindergarten with employed
mothers, who were in centerbased care arrangements 67% (2012) 70% (2016) NS
Children of at least one foreign-born parent
Children ages O-17 living with at least one foreign-born parent 26% (2018 26% (2019) NS
Language spoken at home and difficulty speaking English
Children ages 5-17 who speak a language other than English at home 23% (2017) 23% (2018 NS
Children ages 5-17 who speak a language other than English at home
and who have difficulty speaking English 4% (2017) 4% (2018) NS
Adolescent births
Births fo females ages 15-17 8 per 1,000 7 per 1,000
(2017) (2018) 1l

J

* Population estimates are not sample derived and are not subject to statistical testing. Change between years identifies differences in the proportionate size

of these esfimates as rounded.
** Percenfages may nof sum to 100 because of rounding.

NS = No statistically
significant change

1 = Statistically significant

increase

decrease

1 = Statistically significant



America’s Children at a Glance continued

Change\
Previous Most recent between
value (year) value (year) years
Family and Social Environment— cont.
Child maltreatment*
Substantiated reports of malireatment of children ages 0-17 9.1 per 1,000 9.2 per 1,000
(2017) (2018) T
Economic Circumstances
Child poverty and family income
Children ages 0-17 in poverty 17% (2017) 16% (2018) l
Children living in families with medium income 29% (2017) 30% (2018) NS
Secure parental employment
Children ages 0-17 living with af least one parent employed
year-round, full ime 77.9% (2017) 79.3% (2018 1
Food insecurity
Children ages 0-17 in households classified by USDA as "food insecure” 17% (2017) 15% (2018 l
Health Care
Health insurance coverage
Children ages 0-17 who were uninsured at time of interview 5% (2017) 5% (2018) NS
Usual source of health care
Children ages 0-17 with no usual source of health care 4% (2017) 5% (2018) NS
Immunization
Children ages 19-35 months with the 4:3:1:3*:3:1:4 combined series 71% (20106) 70% (2017) NS
Oral health
Children ages 5-17 with a dental visit in the past year 89% (2017) Q1% (2018) 1
Physical Environment and Safety
Outdoor air quality
Children ages O-17 living in counties with pollutant concentrations
above the levels of the current air quality standards 62% (2017) 64% (2018) NS
Secondhand smoke
Children ages 4-11 with any defectable blood cotinine level, 37% 37%
a measure for recent exposure o secondhand smoke (2013-2014) (2015-201¢) NS
Drinking water quality
Children served by community water systems that did not
meet all applicable health-based drinking water standards 8% (2017) 7% (2018) NS
Lead in the blood of children
Children ages 1-5 with blood lead greater than or equal to 5 pg/dL 2.6% (2007-2010) 0.9% (2013-201¢) l
Housing problems
Households with children ages 017 reporting shelter cost burden,
¥crowo|ing, and/or physically inadequate housing 39% (2015) 39% (2017) NS )

* Population esfimates are not sample derived and are not subject to statistical testing. Change between years identifies differences in the proportionate size of

these estimates as rounded.

NS = No statistically
significant change

1 = Statistically significant

1 = Statistically significant
decrease

increase




America’s Children at a Glance continued

Change A
Previous Most recent between
value (year) value (year) years
Physical Environment and Safety —cont.
Youth victims of serious violent crimes
Serious violent crime victimization of youth ages 12-17 8 per 1,000 6 per 1,000
(2017) (2018] NS
Child injury and mortality
Injury deaths of children ages 1-4 10 per 100,000 10 per 100,000
[(2017) (2018) NS
Injury deaths of children ages 5-14 6 per 100,000 6 per 100,000
(2017) (2018] NS
Adolescent injury and mortality
Injury deaths of adolescents ages 15-19 40 per 100,000 37 per 100,000
[(2017) (2018) 1
Behavior
Regular cigarette smoking
Students who reported smoking daily in the past 30 days
8th grade 1% (2018) 1% (2019) NS
10th grade 2% (2018 1% (2019) NS
12th grade 4% (2018) 2% (2019) l
Alcohol use
Students who reported having five or more alcoholic beverages
in a row in the past 2 weeks
8th grade 4% (2018) 4% (2019) NS
10th grade 9% (2018) 9% (2019) NS
12th grade 14% (2018 14% (2019) NS
Illicit drug use
Students who reported using illicit drugs in the past 30 days
8th grade 7% (2018 9% (2019) NS
10th grade 18% (2018 20% (2019) NS
12th grade 24% (2018 24% (2019) NS
Sexual activity
High school students who reported ever having had sexual infercourse 40% (2017) 38% (2019) NS
Youth perpetrators of serious violent crimes
Youth offenders ages 12—17 involved in serious violent crimes 9 per 1,000 8 per 1,000
(2017) (2018] NS
Education
Family reading to young children
Children ages 3-5 who were read to 3 or more times in the last week 83% (2012) 81% (2016 NS
J

NS = No statistically
significant change

1 = Statistically significant
increase

1 = Statistically significant

decrease



America’s Children at a Glance continued

g Change A
Previous Most recent between
value (year) value (year) years
Education—cont.
Mathematics and reading achievement
Average mathematics scale score of
4th graders (0-500 scale) 240 (2017) 241 (2019) 1
8th graders [0-500 scale] 283 (2017) 282 (2019) 1
12th graders (0-300 scale) 153 (2013) 152 (2015) l
Average reading scale score of
4th graders (0-500 scale) 222 (2017) 220 (2019) 1
8th graders [0-500 scale] 267 (2017) 263 (2019) l
12th graders (0-500 scale) 288 (2013) 287 (2015) NS
High school completion
Young adults ages 18-24 who have completed high school Q3% (2017) Q4% (2018) NS
Youth neither enrolled in school* nor working
Youth ages 16-19 who are neither enrolled in school nor working 8% (2018 8% (2019) NS
College enrollment
Recent high school completers enrolled in college the October
immediately affer completing high school 67% (2017) 69% (2018) NS
Health
Preterm birth and low birthweight
Infants less than 37 completed weeks of gestation at birth 9.9% (2017) 10.0% (2018) 1
Infants weighing less than 5 b. 8 oz. at birth 8% (2017) 8% (2018) NS
Infant mortality
Deaths before first birthday 5.8 per 1,000 5.7 per 1,000
(2017) (2018) 1l
Emotional and behavioral difficulties
Children ages 4-17 reported by a parent to have serious difficulties with
emotions, concentration, behavior, or getting along with other people 6% (2017) 6% (2018) NS
Adolescent depression
Youth ages 12-17 with pastyear major depressive episode 13% (2017) 14% (2018 1
Activity limitation
Children ages 5—17 with activity limitation resulting from one or more
chronic health conditions 11% (2017) 10% (2018) NS
Obesity
Children ages 6-17 who had obesity 20% (2011-2014) 20% (2015-2018) NS
Asthma
Children ages 0-17 who currently have asthma 8% (2017) 8% (2018) NS
\

* School refers to high school and college.

NS = No statistically
significant change

increase

T = Statistically significant

decrease

1 = Statistically significant
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